
City of Glendale 
Library Advisory Board Meeting 

Main Library, Large Meeting Room 
5959 W. Brown St. 

Glendale Arizona, 85302 
 

Wednesday, September 10, 2014 
6:00 p.m. 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
I. Call to Order – 6:06PM 

 
Board members Shelly, Bolognini, Collett, Sommer, Wilson, and Chairperson Aborne 
were present. 
 
Board member Fallucca was absent and excused. 

 
Karen Reed, Acting Chief Librarian, Merideth Jenson-Benjamin, Erik Strunk, Director 
were present from the City of Glendale. 

 
II. Approval of Minutes – May 14, 2014 – Chairperson Aborne asked if there were any 

revisions or corrections to the minutes of May 14, 2014. 
 

Chairperson Aborne made the following changes: 
 
Paragraph 2 – the following should be added to the last paragraph:  This was the final 
meeting for Board member Mackay who was completing two terms and for Board 
member Rada who was graduating from Glendale High School.  Council member Chavira 
and the Board thanked the two teen Board members for their service and wished them 
well in their future endeavors. 
 
Paragraph 6 – the following should be added to the last paragraph: He also noted that the 
original plans for a regional library at this site have become obsolete given the changes in 
library usage since they were first drawn. 
 
Paragraph 7 – the following should be added as paragraph three: Board members 
Sommer, Wilson and Chairperson Aborne participated in Snapshot Day by distributing 
and collecting surveys completed by library patrons.   

 
Board member Sommer made a motion to approve the May 14, 2014 minutes with 
suggested revisions.  Board member Shelly seconded the motion, which passed 
unanimously. 

 
III. Business from the Floor – There was none. 

 



Minutes – Library Advisory Board Meeting 
September 10, 2014 

Page -2 
 
 

IV. Selection of Library Board Vice Chair – Chairperson Aborne said due to the term limit 
of the Vice Chair expiring, a new vice chairperson would need to be nominated and 
approved.  She asked for any nominations. 

 
Board member Sommer nominated Board member Wilson for Vice Chair. With no other 
nominations, Board member Bolognini seconded the nomination, which passed 
unanimously.  Board member Wilson accepted. 

 
V. Draft Annual Report: Fiscal Year 13-14 – Chairperson Aborne introduced Ms. 

Merideth Jenson-Benjamin.  She stated Ms. Benjamin as well as Ms. Reed would be 
presenting the Draft Annual Report for Fiscal Year 13-14, which represents July 1, 2013 
through June 30, 2014. 
 
Ms. Reed began with information stating the number of employees is 53.  She explained 
this consists of full time employees and a number of part time employees.  Ms. Reed 
reviewed each library position. 
 
Chairperson Aborne asked if part time, temporary employees were from a temporary 
agency.  Ms. Reed said no. 
 
Board member Bolognini asked why the vacant positions haven’t been filled.  Ms. Reed 
said due to the downturn in the economy and the uncertainly of the continuation of the 
sales tax, direction was given not to hire at this time. 
 
Ms. Reed continued by providing statistics on the number of persons who frequent the 
library, the number of library cards issued, and the total count at the drive up windows. 
 
Ms. Benjamin displayed a chart showing where those holding library cards reside by 
Council district. 
 
Board member Wilson was concerned with the decrease in computer usage.  Ms. 
Benjamin stated that patrons have mentioned that the computers are old and slow. 
 
Chairperson Aborne asked why the computers aren’t being replaced.  Ms. Reed explained 
there is no longer an IT person strictly dedicated to the libraries any longer.  Chairperson 
Aborne asked if the Board could do anything to advocate for better computers. 
 
Ms. Benjamin continued by explaining the databases offered, their functions, and which 
were most popular. 
 
She noted how many items were checked out and returned.  She noted how many patrons 
added programs and events.  Chariperson Aborne wanted to ensure this included the total 
number in attendance at Wee Reeders.  Ms. Benjamin said yes. 
 



Minutes – Library Advisory Board Meeting 
September 10, 2014 

Page -2 
 
 

Ms. Benjamin noted the STEM program was very well received and the attendance was 
much higher than initially anticipated.  Chairperson Aborne felt the public should be 
made aware of this information. 
 
Ms. Reed stated the Velma Teague Library received a grant for the cost of renovation.  
Board member Bolognini said the public should know the renovation is soon coming.  
She asked if it would remain open during the renovation.  Ms. Reed said yes. 
 
Chairperson Aborne noted she would like to hold a meeting once the renovation is 
completed. 
 
There was no action needed on this item as it was for informational purpose only. 
 
The link to the presentation was also provided on the agenda for anyone wishing to 
review the information. 

 
VI. Summer Reading in Review – Chairperson Aborne introduced this item.  Ms. Merideth 

Jenson-Benjamin presented numbers, programs, and results from Summer Reading 2014. 
 
She explained the program as administered by Maricopa County.  The program was 
completed on line and there were no incentive prizes given.  Ms. Benjamin said they 
followed the program but also provided a “paper tracking system” for those wishing to 
participate.  She explained a few changes they made to the program for specific groups 
such as the preschool readers. 
 
Ms. Benjamin said participants cited different complaints such as the program didn’t 
offer prizes; accounting for reading hours was to be done online; and too difficult to 
maneuver around the site.  However, she said patrons do love the Summer Reading 
Program and all those who are involved. 
 
In response to a question from Mr. Strunk, Ms. Benjamin said the easier you make the 
program, the more people wish to participate and they will. 
 
She concluded by stating at this point they are not sure what is in store for the Summer 
Reading Program of 2015. 
 
Board member Sommer thanked Ms. Benjamin for the presentation and wish to thank all 
those who were involved with the Summer Reading Program. 
 
She stated there is a link to this presentation as well provided on the agenda for anyone 
wishing to review the information.  No action was taken as this was for informational 
purposes only. 
 



Minutes – Library Advisory Board Meeting 
September 10, 2014 

Page -2 
 
 

VII. Acting Chief Librarian Update – Ms. Karen Reed providing the Board members with 
an update on the current library activities, operations, and projects.  She included a 
briefing on the following: 

 
Create, Connect, Collaborate @ Your Library – Ms. Reed said all age groups have been 
covered through this program.  She noted some of the upcoming artists coming to the 
libraries.  Ms. Christy Puetz would be coming in November.  The Elephant and the Piggy 
Party will be at Foothills.  The Egypt Expedition will begin on Wednesday, September 
17, 2014.  Also, the Zombie LARP program will be returning for its fourth year. 
 
Board member Bolognini asked if advertising was taken place.  Ms. Benjamin said the 
outreach librarian is taking care of advertising for this program. 
 
eMerging Readers Grant – Ms. Reed said this is a $21,000 grant received by the library. 
 
Update on Wee Readers at Westgate – Wee Readers continues every first and third 
Monday at Westgate.  There were 49 people in attendance at the last reading, a record 
breaker.  Ms. Reed said Mojgan Vahabzadeh, Public Arts Coordinator, for the city of 
Glendale, would be designing a sign to advertise the Wee Readers program. 
 
Library Program Marketing – Ms. Reed stated there have been three marketing 
committees established to review and promote libraries’ programs, database services, and 
new library cards. 
 
National Library Card Month (September) – Ms. Reed said everyone who signs up for a 
library card will receive a magnet which reads “I Love My Library Card”. She distributed 
a magnet to each board member. 
 
Other – Ms. Reed said she and other library staff attended training and toured the Burton 
Barr Library.  She touched on the highlights of the training.  The highlight of the tour was 
the idea of engaging the community on improving the libraries.  Also, a tour was 
provided of their Makerspace. 
 
Ms. Reed said the recruitment for the Chief Librarian has resumed.   

 
VIII. Items of Interest for Future Library Advisory Board Agendas – Chairperson Aborne 

asked the Board members for suggested topics of interest they wish to see added to the 
agenda. 
 
Chairperson Aborne asked all Board members to contribute any ideas or events which 
should be added to the information sheet. 

 
IX. Library Advisory Board Comments and Suggestions – Chairperson Aborne asked the 

Board for their comments. 
 



Minutes – Library Advisory Board Meeting 
September 10, 2014 

Page -2 
 
 

Chairperson Aborne asked if the Board members had any items they wished to add to the 
agenda.  At this time, there were none. 
 
Board member Wilson distributed information regarding events occurring September 
through December such as City Council meetings, Council District meetings, and events 
at the libraries. 

 
 Board member Wilson indicated she would like to learn more about the city’s budget 

related to the libraries and what the public would like from its libraries. 
 
 Chairperson Aborne asked about the new Public Information Officer hired by the City, 

Mr. Joe Hengemuehler.  She would like the opportunity to speak with him about the 
libraries and all they offer.  She would also like to have a retreat next year similar to last 
year’s retreat held in January at the Glendale Gallery. 

 
 Board member Wilson noted she was pleased with the information and promotion of 

events provided on her recent book check out receipt given at the self check out.   
 
 Mr. Strunk added the Glendale Main Library was nominated for the 36th Annual Readers’ 

Choice in the New Times. 
 

X. Adjournment – With no further business, the meeting adjourned at 7:55pm. 
 
The next regular meeting will be in the Large Meeting Room at the Main Library on 
Wednesday, October 8, 2014 at 6 PM. 


	City of Glendale
	Wednesday, September 10, 2014

	MEETING MINUTES
	I. Call to Order – 6:06PM
	II. Approval of Minutes – May 14, 2014 – Chairperson Aborne asked if there were any revisions or corrections to the minutes of May 14, 2014.
	Board member Sommer made a motion to approve the May 14, 2014 minutes with suggested revisions.  Board member Shelly seconded the motion, which passed unanimously.


